#### PLANNING APPLICATIONS COMMITTEE

Wednesday, 9 June 2021

**PRESENT** – Councillors Mrs D Jones (Chair), Allen, Clarke, Cossins, Heslop, Laing, Lee, McCollom, Sowerby, Tait and Tostevin.

**APOLOGIES** – Councillors Lister and Wallis.

**ALSO IN ATTENDANCE** – Councillors Curry, Durham and Renton.

**OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE** – Dave Coates (Head of Planning, Development and Environmental Health), Arthur Howson (Engineer (Traffic Management)), Andrew Errington (Lawyer (Planning)), Lisa Hutchinson (Principal Planning Officer) and Paul Dalton (Elections Officer)

#### PA1 APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR FOR THE MUNICIPAL YEAR 2021/2022

**RESOLVED -** That Councillor Mrs. Jones be appointed Chair of this Committee for the Municipal Year 2021/22.

#### PA2 APPOINTMENT OF VICE CHAIR FOR THE MUNICIPAL YEAR 2021/2022

**RESOLVED -** That Councillor Tostevin be appointed Vice-Chair of this Committee for the Municipal Year 2021/22.

## PA3 TO CONSIDER THE TIMES OF MEETINGS OF THIS COMMITTEE FOR THE MUNICIPAL YEAR 2021 / 2022 ON THE DATES AGREED IN THE CALENDAR OF MEETINGS BY CABINET AT MINUTE C97/FEB/2021

**RESOLVED** – That meetings of this Committee for the Municipal Year 2021/22, be held at 1.30 p.m. on the dates, as agreed on the calendar of meetings by Cabinet at Minute C97/Feb/2021.

#### PA4 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest reported at the meeting.

### PA5 TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THIS COMMITTEE HELD ON 14 APRIL 2021

**RESOLVED** – That the Minutes of this Committee held on 14 April 2021 be approved as a correct record.

## PA6 APPLICATIONS FOR PLANNING PERMISSION AND OTHER CONSENTS UNDER THE TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT AND ASSOCIATED LEGISLATION

| A1 | The approval of the Local Planning Authority shall be obtained |
|----|--|
|    | with respect to the following reserved matters prior to the    |
|    | commencement of the development:-                              |

|    | (a) access (b) appearance (c) landscaping (d) layout (e) scale  Application for approval of reserved matters shall be made to the local planning authority before the expiration of three years   |
|----|---|
|    | from the date of this permission.   |
|    | <b>Reason</b> - To accord with the provisions of Section 92(1) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.   |
| A2 | The development shall be begun two years from the final approval of the matters referred to in condition [1] or, in the case of approval on different dates the final approval of the last such matter to be approved.  |
|    | <b>Reason</b> - To accord with the provisions of Section 92[1] of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.   |
| A3 | Implementation Limit (Three Years)  The development hereby permitted shall be commenced not later than the expiration of three years from the date of this permission.  |
|    | <b>Reason:</b> To accord with the provisions of Section 91(1) of the Town and Country Planning Act, 1990.   |
| E3 | The submitted landscaping scheme shall be fully implemented concurrently with the carrying out of the development, or within such extended period which may be agreed in writing by, the Local Planning Authority and thereafter any trees or shrubs removed, dying, severely damaged or becoming seriously diseased shall be replaced, and the landscaping scheme maintained for a period of five years to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority. |
|    | Reason - In the interests of the visual amenities of the area.  |
| PL | The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the approved plan(s) as detailed below, ^IN;   |
|    | Reason: To define the consent.  |

### PA7 PLATFORM 1. DARLINGTON ROAD, MIDDLETON ST GEORGE

**21/00223/OUT** – Outline application with details of access, appearance, layout, and scale (landscaping reserved for future consideration) for the conversion, partial

demolition, and rear extension of public house (Sui Generis) to form convenience store (Use Class E) with car parking and associated works

(In reaching its decision, the Committee took into consideration the Planning Officer's report (previously circulated), 149 letters of objection received, 138 letters of support received, the views of Middleton St. George Parish Council, the objection received from the Council's Conservation Officer, the objection received from Friends of Darlington and Stockton Railway, the objection received from the Council for the Protection of Rural England (CPRE), the objection received from the Campaign for Real Ale (CAMRA), the objection received from Save The Fighting Cocks Community Group, a further two letters of objection received by the Planning Officer subsequent to the publication of the submitted report, a further fifteen letters of support received by the Planning Officer subsequent to the publication of the submitted report, and the views of three Objectors, a representative of Middleton St. George Parish Council and the Applicant's Agent, whom the Committee heard).

**RESOLVED –** That Outline Planning Permission by granted subject to the following conditions:

- 1. A1 Outline (Reserved matters)
- 2. A2 Outline (Implementation Time)
- 3. PL (Accordance with Plan)

2165-P200 Rev E Site location plan 2165-P204 Rev G Site Layout plan 2165-P206 Rev C Proposed elevations 2165-P205 Rev D Proposed ground Floor Layout 2165-P207 Demolition Plan

- 4. E3 Landscaping (Implementation)
- 5. Prior to any works above damp-proof course, details of the external materials (to include parapet detail) to be used in the carrying out of the development, shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in accordance with the approved details.

**REASON** – In the interests of visual amenity.

6. No development shall commence until a written scheme of investigation setting out a programme of archaeological work in accordance with 'Standards for All Archaeological Work in County Durham and Darlington' has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The programme of archaeological work will then be carried out in accordance with the approved scheme of works.

**REASON** - To safeguard any Archaeological Interest in the site, and to comply with part 16 of the National Planning Policy Framework. Required to

be a pre-commencement condition as the archaeological investigation/mitigation must be devised prior to the development being implemented.

- 7. The development shall not be occupied until the post investigation assessment has been completed in accordance with the approved Written Scheme of Investigation. The provision made for analysis, publication and dissemination of results, and archive deposition, should be confirmed in writing to, and approved by, the Local Planning Authority.
  - **REASON** To comply with Paragraph 199 of the NPPF, which requires the developer to record and advance understanding of the significance of heritage assets, and to ensure information gathered becomes publicly accessible.
- 8. Prior to the commencement of the development, a site-specific Demolition and Construction Management Plan shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The plan[s] shall include the following, unless the Local Planning Authority dispenses with any requirements specifically and in writing:
  - a. Dust Assessment Report which assesses the dust emission magnitude, the sensitivity of the area, risk of impacts and details of the dust control measures to be put in place during the demolition and construction phases of the development. The Dust Assessment Report shall take account of the guidance contained within the Institute of Air Quality Management "Guidance on the assessment of dust from demolition and construction" February 2014:
  - b. Methods for controlling noise and vibration during the demolition and construction phase and shall take account of the guidance contained within BS5228 "Code of Practice for noise and vibration control on construction and open sites" 2009.
  - c. Construction Traffic Routes, including parking areas for staff and visitors.
  - d. Details of wheel washing.
  - e. Road Maintenance.
  - f. Warning signage.

The development shall not be carried out otherwise in complete accordance with the approved Plan.

**REASON** – In the interests of highway safety and residential amenity.

9. Construction and demolition work shall not take place outside the hours of 08.00 -18.00 Monday - Friday, 08.00 -14.00 Saturday with no working on a Sunday and Bank/Public Holidays without the prior written permission from the Local Planning Authority.

**REASON** – In the interests of residential amenity.

10. Prior to the commencement of the development, a detailed survey of trees to be affected by the development (both within the site and adjoining its

boundary) shall be carried out. The survey shall include the identification of measures to protect existing retained trees in order to protect them from damage by compaction, severance and material spillage, in accordance with BS5837, and shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. No demolition or site clearance shall be commenced until the agreed measures are in place and have been inspected by the Council's Arboricultural Officer. The approved measures shall remain in place through the carrying out of this planning permission. Notwithstanding the above approved specification, none of the following activities shall take place within the segregated protection zones in the area of the trees:

- a) The raising or lowering of levels in relation to existing ground levels;
- b) Cutting of roots, digging of trenches or removal of soil;
- c) Erection of temporary buildings, roads or carrying out of any engineering operations;
- d) Lighting of fires;
- e) Driving of vehicles or storage of materials and equipment.

**REASON** – To ensure a maximum level of protection in order to safeguard the well-being of the trees on the site and in the interest of the visual amenities of the area.

11. Prior to the occupation of the development hereby approved, details of the size, type, and location of the proposed interpretation panels, and details of the seating area shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. These shall be in place prior to the occupation of the development hereby approved and shall be retained as such thereafter.

**REASON** - To recognise the significance of the site to the Stockton and Darlington Railway in line with the aims and objectives of the Heritage Action Zone.

12. Prior to the occupation of the development hereby approved, two litter bins shall be provided (one to be situated to the seating area to the rear) in accordance with details to be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. The litter bins shall be in place prior to the occupation of the building and shall be retained thereafter.

**REASON** – In the interests of residential amenity.

13. Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, no part of the development shall be occupied until a Travel Plan, to help reduce dependency on the use of the private car has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Travel Plan should include clear and unambiguous objectives and modal split targets, together with a time-bound programme of implementation, monitoring and regular review and improvement; Thereafter, the development shall not be carried out otherwise than in accordance with the terms of the approved Travel Plan.

- **REASON** To encourage the reduction of journeys made to and from the development by private motor vehicles by the promotion of more sustainable forms of transport.
- 14. Details of any external lighting, to include a lighting impact assessment undertaken be an independent qualified assessor, shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority prior to the occupation of the building. Thereafter the external lighting shall be installed in complete accordance with the approved details and maintained as such thereafter.

**REASON** – In the interests of residential amenity.

15. Prior to the occupation of the development, precise details of secure cycle parking / storage shall be submitted and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The details shall include the number, location, and specifications of all cycle parking / storage and thereafter the development shall not be carried out otherwise than in complete accordance with the approved details. All parking shall be made available prior to the occupation of the dwellings hereby approved and retained as such thereafter.

**REASON** – To encourage more sustainable modes of transport.

16. Prior to the operation of the convenience store 2 no. electric vehicle charging points shall be provided on site in accordance with details to be submitted to and approved in writing, prior to the occupation of the development.

**REASON** - To make provision for sustainable means of transport

17. The opening hours of the premises shall be restricted to between 07:00 and 23:00 unless otherwise approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

**REASON** – In the interests of residential amenity.

18. Deliveries to the site shall be at the service access bay to the rear of the property and shall not take place outside of the hours of 08:00 and 18:00 Monday to Sunday unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

**REASON** – In the interests of residential amenity.

19. Prior to the commencement of use, full particulars and details of any external plant and equipment, shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be undertaken fully in accordance with the approved details prior to the commencement of the

use and shall be retained as such thereafter.

**REASON** - In the interests of residential amenity.

### PA8 AGRICULTURAL LAND AND CREMATORIUM, WEST CEMETERY, CARMEL ROAD NORTH

**21/00271/DC** – Application submitted under Section 73 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 for the variation of condition 14 (drainage) attached to planning permission 19/01185/DC dated 9 March 2020 (refurbishment of existing crematorium including conversion of existing chapel to office space and erection of new chapel, car parking, external lighting, floral tribute area and garden of remembrance on agricultural land) to allow an increased discharge rate of 5 l/sec rather than 3.5 l/sec

(In reaching its decision, the Committee took into consideration the Planning Officer's report (previously circulated), four letters of objection and the views of the Applicant's Agent, whom the Committee heard).

**RESOLVED –** That Planning Permission by granted subject to the following conditions:

- 1. The development hereby permitted shall be commenced not later than 9 March 2023.
  - **REASON** To accord with the provisions of Section 73 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
- 2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the approved plan(s) as detailed below:
  - (a) Proposed site plan, drawing number DC19002/A/020 P1 dated 18.12.2019
  - (b) Proposed site plan crematorium, existing car parking and passing places, drawing number DC19002/A/021 P1 dated 18.12.2019
  - (c) Proposed site plan chapel, drawing number DC19002/A/022 P1 dated 18.10.2019
  - (d) Proposed external works fencing, drawing number DC19002/A/035 P1 dated 16.12.2019
  - (e) Proposed external works fencing details, drawing number DC19002/A/036 P1 dated 19.12.2019
  - (f) Contractors compound and access plan sheet 1 of 2, drawing number DC19002/A/040 P1 dated 29.11.2019
  - (g) Contractors compound and access plan sheet 2 of 2, drawing number DC19002/A/041 P1 dated 29.11.2019
  - (h) Proposed ground floor plan chapel, drawing number DC19002/A/101 P1 dated 28.10.2019
  - (i) Proposed ground floor plan crematorium, drawing number DC19002/A/120 P1 dated 03.12.2019
  - (i) Proposed roof plan crematorium, drawing number DC19002/A/130 P1

- dated 16.12.2019
- (k) Proposed roof plan chapel, drawing number DC19002/A/131 P1 dated 12.11.2019
- Proposed elevations crematorium, drawing number DC19002/A/220 P1 dated 10.12.19
- (m)Proposed chapel elevations, drawing number DC19002/A/221 P1 dated 28.10.2019
- (n) Proposed site sections chapel, sheet 1 of 3, drawing number DC190002/A/320 P1 dated 19.12.2019
- (o) Proposed site sections chapel, sheet 2 of 3, drawing number DC19002/A/321 P1 dated 19.12.2019
- (p) Proposed site sections chapel, sheet 3 of 3, drawing number DC19002/A/322 P1 dated 19.12.2019
- (q) Landscape concept, drawing number BA9684LAN-C dated 18.12.2019 issue C
- (r) Landscape planting detail, drawing numbher BA9684LAN-D1 dated 18.12.2019 issue C
- (s) Outline drainage strategy chapel, drawing number DC19002-APP-00-XX-DR-C-30001-S3 P06 dated 12.7.2019
- (t) Outline surfacing and level strategy, drawing number DC19002-APP-00-XX-DR-C-30002-S3 P05 dated 12.7.2019
- (u) External lighting and trenching layout sheet 1 of 2, drawing number DC19002/A/607 T1 dated February 2020
- (v) External lighting and trenching layout sheet 2 of 2, drawing number DC19002/E/608 T1 dated February 2020

#### **REASON** – To define the consent

- 3. The development hereby permitted shall be constructed in accordance with the external materials/finishes as set out in the application and detailed on drawing numbers DC19002/A/220 P1 Proposed elevations crematorium and DC19002/A/221 P1 Proposed chapel elevations.
  - **REASON** To ensure that the external appearance of the development is an appropriate design and quality in accordance with Policy CS2.
- 4. The ecological enhancement and mitigation measures set out in the Barrett Environmental Ltd 'Preliminary Ecological Appraisal: Plot 09/035, West Cemetery, Darlington' dated December 2019 and 'Bat Survey Report: Crematorium, West Cemetery, Darlington' dated October 2019 shall be implemented in full. In addition, no development of the new chapel building above damp proof course level shall take place until a scheme for the planting of an area of species rich grassland on land to the south of the proposed burial ground has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the approved scheme shall be implemented in full prior to the chapel first being brought into use.

#### **REASON** – To comply with Policy CS15.

5. The submitted landscaping scheme shall be fully implemented concurrently with the carrying out of the development, or within such extended period

which may be agreed in writing, the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter any trees or shrubs removed, dying, severely damaged or becoming seriously diseased shall be replaced, and the landscaping scheme maintained for a period of five years to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority.

**REASON** – In the interests of the visual amenity of the area and to ensure compliance with Policy CS15.

6. Prior to any demolition or construction activities taking place on site, existing trees shall be protected in accordance with the details contained in the Barnes Associates Arboricultural Impact Assessment 'Expansion and Refurbishment of Crematorium and Chapel' dated 19.12.2019 and shown on drawing number BA9684TPP 'Tree Impacts' dated 18.10.2019. The tree protection measures shall remain in place in accordance with these details for the duration of the construction phase of the development hereby permitted.

**REASON** – To ensure a maximum level of protection in order to safeguard the wellbeing of the trees on site and in the interests of the visual amenities of the area.

7. The demolition and construction phase of the development hereby permitted shall be carried out in strict accordance with the measures set out in the 'West Cemetery Crematorium Construction Management Plan Revision 1' dated December 2019.

**REASON** – In the interests of highway safety and residential amenity

8. Demolition and construction activities on the site shall not take place outside of the hours of 08.00 – 18.00 Monday to Friday and 08.00 – 14.00 on a Saturday. There shall be no working on a Sunday other than those activities set out in the Facultatieve Technologies 'Proposed Sunday Working Schedule' between the hours of 09.00 and 17.00.

**REASON** – In the interest of residential amenity

9. Prior to installation of the temporary stack associated with the replacement of the existing cremators, details of the stack, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The temporary stack shall be removed following full installation and commissioning of the new cremators which shall thereafter be served by the existing stack.

REASON – In the interest of residential and visual amenity

10. Prior to the new chapel hereby permitted first being brought into use, a scheme to provide secure cycle parking on the site shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the chapel shall not be brought into use until the approved details have been implemented in full and shall be retained for the lifetime of the development.

**REASON** – To encourage access to the site by sustainable modes of transport

11. Prior to the new chapel hereby permitted first being brought into use, details of a scheme to erect a 2.4 metre close boarded timber fence adjacent to the service road leading from the south of the existing maintenance building to the existing cemetery shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the chapel shall not be brought into use until the fence has been erected in accordance with the details as approved and shall be maintained for the lifetime of the development.

**REASON** – In the interests of visual and residential amenity

12. No development shall commence until a written scheme of investigation setting out a phased programme of archaeological work in accordance with 'Standards for All Archaeological Work in County Durham and Darlington' has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The programme of archaeological work will then be carried out in accordance with the approved scheme of works.

REASON – To safeguard any archaeological interest in the site, and to comply with part 16 of the National Planning Policy Framework. A precommencement condition is required as the archaeological investigation/mitigation must be devised prior to the development being implemented

13. No part of an individual phase of the development as set out in the agreed programme of archaeological works shall be occupied until the post investigation assessment has been completed in accordance with the approved Written Scheme of Investigation. The provision made for analysis, publication and dissemination of results, and archive deposition, should be confirmed in writing to, and approved by, the Local Planning Authority.

**REASON** – To comply with paragraph 199 of the National Planning Policy Framework, which requires the developer to record and advance understanding of the significance of heritage assets, and to ensure information gathered becomes publicly accessible.

14. Development shall be implemented in line with the drainage scheme contained within the submitted document entitled 'Outline Drainage Strategy – Chapel' dated 2019-12-05. The drainage scheme shall ensure that foul and surface water flows discharge to the public sewerage network via the existing private on site drainage. The additional surface water generated from the new development element of the proposal shall not exceed 5l/sec

**REASON** – To prevent the increased risk of flooding from any sources in accordance with the NPPF.

15. The development hereby approved shall not be commenced on site until a scheme for the implementation, maintenance and management of a sustainable surface water drainage scheme has first been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall be implemented and thereafter managed and maintained in accordance with the

approved details. The scheme shall include but not be restricted to providing the following details:

- I. Detailed design of the surface water management system;
- II. A built program and timetable for the provision of the critical surface water drainage infrastructure
- III. A management plan detailing how surface water runoff from the site will be managed during the construction phase

While the decision to discharge conditions laid out in the paragraph above is a technical one, residents who have been consulted to date shall have sight of the papers which inform any decision to discharge. Any meetings of professionals to consider the discharge shall have access to comments by residents on the success or otherwise of the flooding mitigation measures.

**REASON** – To ensure the site is developed in a manner that will not increase the risk of surface water flooding to the site or surrounding area, in accordance Core Strategy Policy CS16 and the National Planning Policy Framework.

16. The development hereby permitted shall not commence until the remedial works highlighted in the Jet Aire Service GR8370 Darlington Crematorium report and accompanying drawing and mitigation measures highlighted in the Jet Air Services correspondence dated 13/02/2020 have been completed. The applicant must submit a programme for these works and the drainage system must be fully operational before works commence on the proposed development.

**REASON** – To ensure that flood risk to the site and neighbouring sites is not increased as a result of this proposed development

17. Prior to the chapel hereby approved being constructed above damp proof course level, details of a wall to be constructed along the southern boundary of the application site and associated landscaping scheme shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the wall and landscaping scheme shall be implemented in full in accordance with the approved details prior to the chapel first being brought into use.

**REASON** – In the interests of visual and residential amenity

#### PA9 DENE HEAD FARM, COATHAM LANE, COATHAM MUNDEVILLE

**21/00115/FUL** - Removal of hedgerow and erection of approx. 1.6m high boundary fencing with access gates, construction of hardstanding for horse arena viewing area and erection of approx. 3m high privacy fencing to side/rear (Retrospective Application).

(In reaching its decision, the Committee took into consideration the Planning Officer's report (previously circulated), the views of the Council's Public Rights of Way Officer, the views of the Council's Ecology adviser, and four letters of objection received).

**RESOLVED –** That Planning Permission by granted subject to the following conditions:

1. Notwithstanding any details of the proposed compensatory hedgerow shown on drawing 1 of 3, Rev. A 'Proposed Plans', 2 no. standards trees shall be planted within the hedgerow of a species and in a location that shall first be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority.

**REASON** – In the interest of biodiversity and to comply with Core Strategy Policy CS15.

2. The compensatory hedgerow and wildflower meadow as shown on drawing 1 of 3 Rev A, including the planting of 2 no. standard trees as referred to in condition 1 of this permission, shall be fully implemented within 2 years from the date of this permission. Any trees, hedgerow plants or wildflower meadow planting removed, dying, severely damaged or becoming seriously diseased shall be replaced, and the landscaping scheme shall be maintained for the lifetime of the development hereby permitted.

**REASON** - To ensure that the compensatory works as approved by this permission are carried out in a timely manner in the interests of ecology and biodiversity.

- 3. PL
  - Site Location Plan
  - 1 of 3 Rev A Proposed Plans
  - 3 of 3 Rev A Proposed Fencing Plans and Elevations

#### PA10 169 NORTH ROAD

**21/00247/FUL -** Change of use from Estate Agents (Use Class E) to Hot Food Takeaway (Sui Generis) with the installation of extraction flue to rear elevation and associated internal works (Amended Plans showing removal of shop front alterations submitted 23rd March 2021)

(In reaching its decision, the Committee took into consideration the Planning Officer's report (previously circulated), the objections of the Council's Environmental Health Department, the views of the Police Architectural Liaison Officer, thirteen letters of objection received, fifteen letters of support, and representations from the Applicant, two Supporters and the Ward Councillor, whom the Committee heard).

**RESOLVED –** That the application be deferred to a future meeting of this Committee.

#### PA11 199 GENEVA ROAD, DARLINGTON

21/00319/FUL - Change of use of land from open space to enclosed garden and

car parking area including erection of 1.8m boundary fence.

(In reaching its decision, the Committee took into consideration the Planning Officer's report (previously circulated), eight letters of objection, and a representation from the Applicant, whom Members heard).

**RESOLVED –** That Planning Permission by granted subject to the following conditions:

1. A3 Implementation Limit (Three Years)

The development hereby permitted shall be commenced not later than the expiration of three years from the date of this permission.

**REASON** – To accord with the provisions of Section 91(1) of the Town and Country Planning Act, 1990.

2. The development hereby permitted shall be constructed in accordance with the materials as set out in the application, unless otherwise agreed, in writing, with the Local Planning Authority.

**REASON** – To ensure that the external appearance of the development is of an appropriate design in accordance with Saved Policy H12 (Alterations and extensions to existing dwellings) of the Borough of Darlington Local Plan 1997 (Alterations 2001).

3. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the approved plan, as detailed below:-

Drawing Number - 21-001/02/ A - Existing And Proposed Site Plan & Details

**REASON** – To ensure the development is carried out in accordance with the planning permission.

#### PA12 NOTIFICATION OF DECISION ON APPEALS

The Chief Executive reported that, Inspectors, appointed by the Secretary of State for the Environment, had:-

Dismissed the appeal by Mr Yousif Ameen-Ali against this Authority's decision to refuse permission for roof repairs and facade remediation including blocking up existing openings at low level, installation of secure roller shutter doors and removal of damaged roof structure, at Clayton's Yard, Darlington, DL1 1SH (20/00298/FUL)

Dismissed the appeal by Mr Mark Stratford against this Authority's decision to refuse permission for Horse chestnut - pruning to part of the west facing crown; pruning to lower branches as indicated on attached information at 1 Cedar Grove, Middleton St George, Darlington, DL2 1GA (20/00578/TF)

**RESOLVED** – That the report be received.

#### PA13 TO CONSIDER THE EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS

**RESOLVED -** That, pursuant to Sections 100A(4) and (5) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting during the consideration of the ensuing item on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in exclusion paragraph 7 of Part I of Schedule 12A to the Act.

# PA14 COMPLAINTS RECEIVED AND BEING CONSIDERED UNDER THE COUNCIL'S APPROVED CODE OF PRACTICE AS OF 28 MAY 2021 (EXCLUSION PARAGRAPH NO. 7)

Pursuant to Minute PA96/Apr/2021, the Chief Executive submitted a report (previously circulated) detailing breaches of planning regulations investigated by this Council, as at 28 May 2021.

**RESOLVED -** That the report be noted.